
City of Milwaukee 
200 E. Wells Street

Milwaukee, Wisconsin 53202

Meeting Minutes 

CAPITAL IMPROVEMENTS 
COMMITTEE 

ALD. JOSEPH DUDZIK, CHAIR
Ald. Robert Bauman, Ald. Michael Murphy, Jeffrey Mantes,   
W. Martin Morics, Mark Nicolini, and Mariano Schifalacqua 

 
Staff Assistant, Terry MacDonald 

Phone:  (414)-286-2233; Fax: (414) 286-3456, E-mail: 
tmacdo@milwaukee.gov 

City of Milwaukee Page 1

Mr. Mantes moved approval of the minutes. There were no objections. 

2. Review and approval of the December 10, 2009 meeting minutes 

Also present: Venu Gupta, Dept. of Public Works, David Schroeder, Dennis 
Yaccarino and Eric Pearson, Dept. of Admin., Budget & Management Div., 
Marianne Walsh and Barry Zalben, Legislative Reference Bureau and Carrie 
Lewis, Superintendent of Water Works 

1. Roll call: 
 
Members Present: 7 - Ald. Joseph  Dudzik, Chair, Gerald Froh (Ald. Michael 
Murphy Alternate), Ald. Bauman, Jeffrey Mantes, Michael Daun (W. Martin 
Morics Alternate), Mark Nicolini, and Mariano Schifalacqua 
 
Members Excused: 0 

Meeting convened: 1:34 P.M. 

Thursday, January 21, 2010 Room 301-B, City Hall1:30 PM



CAPITAL IMPROVEMENTS 
COMMITTEE 

January 21, 2010Meeting Minutes

3. Updated on the hiring process of the Fiscal Planning Specialist 

Mr. Ronald Leonhardt, City Clerk appeared on this matter.
 
He said he has assigned Ms. Marianne Walsh to provide temporary staffing assistance to 
this committee. He said even when the position is filled; the Legislative Reference Bureau 
will continue to provide support to this committee.  
 
Mr. Leonhardt said he has been working with the Department of Employee Relations on 
the recruitment efforts and, so far, they have prepared a transfer promotional 
announcement that will be sent to all City departments, he has reviewed the transfer, 
reinstatement and eligible lists that have similar duties that is needed for this position and 
lastly, he sent out an internal announcement to the City Clerk’s Office staff.  He said he 
received three applications from internal staff that have backgrounds that would qualify 
them for this position.  
 
He said the chair has asked Mr. Froh, Mr. Schifalacqua and Mr. Daun to serve on an 
interview panel along with the Deputy City Clerk.  The first interviews will be scheduled 
for next week.  He said if one of those three candidates is acceptable, an immediate 
appointment to the position would be made. If none of those candidates are acceptable, 
he will go to the lists and invite some of those candidates to come in for interviews.   
 
Mr. Schifalacqua said that at the last meeting the committee approved the change to the 
pay grade from 6 to 8, but it was subject to City Service Commission (CSC) action. He 
asked if the CSC approved it?  
 
Mr. Leonhardt replied in the affirmative. 

Roll call taken at 2:00 P.M.: 
 
Members Present: 6 - Ald. Joseph  Dudzik, Chair, Gerald Froh (Ald. Michael 
Murphy Alternate), Jeffrey Mantes, Michael Daun (W. Martin Morics 
Alternate), Mark Nicolini, and Mariano Schifalacqua 
 
Members Excused: 1 - Ald. Bauman 

City of Milwaukee Page 2



CAPITAL IMPROVEMENTS 
COMMITTEE 

January 21, 2010Meeting Minutes

4. Presentation given by Budget & Management Div. on the current Capital 
Improvements Plan process 

Mr. David Schroeder and Mr. Dennis Yaccarino, Budget & Management Div. appeared 
on this matter.  
 
Mr. Schroeder handed out the following documents: 
Capital Improvements Planning process presentation (Exhibit 1); 
A spreadsheet titled: "2009-2014 Capital Improvements Plan, Adopted Budget, and 2011-
2015 Department Requests by Funding Source" (Exhibit 2); and 
A spreadsheet titled: "Table 1 - 2009-2014 Capital Improvements Plan, Adopted Budget, 
and 2011-2015 Department Requests by Funding Source" (Exhibit 3). 
 
Mr. Schroeder began the presentation by giving an overview of the current capital 
improvement planning (CIP) objectives, the policy formulation and establishing funding 
parameters. 
 
Mr. Yaccarino explained the program funding and capital borrowing sections of the 
presentation (Exhibit 1, pages 3 and 4).  
 
Mr. Schifalacqua asked Mr. Yaccarino to explain the budget office basic philosophy on 
comparing its cash and debt budgeting?  
 
Mr. Yaccarino replied the budget office looks at how much debt is retiring vs. how much 
cash (tax levy) is coming in and that gives them an idea where things are going. 
 
Mr. Schifalacqua said the graph on page 4 of the presentation shows a pretty level debt 
service and asked is that a good amount for the City to be at?  
 
Mr. Daun replied that the way the bond holders look at the City debt capacity and 
determines their risk is by the property values, because that is the source of the 
repayment of the debt. He said the City's property tax value over the last decade has 
been the highest. He said the rating agencies looks at the City's ability to balance its 
budgets, its debt reserve and its rapid amortization.  He said the rating agencies consider 
the city's debt rate as favorable.   
 
Mr. Yaccarino said that how the debt service is dealt with affects all services not only 
capital improvements. 
 
Mr. Froh said the City is borrowing up to 80-90% of its infrastructure improvement costs 
and said that does put the city at a risk, because the interest rates are going to up and 
this body will need to face that increase in the next few years.  
 
Mr. Schroeder continued on page 5 of his presentation.  He gave examples of ways this 
committee could use in setting its infrastructure projects and funding priorities.   
 
Mr. Daun said that now that the City has sewer in an enterprise funds, is covering its 
City’s debt service and the City has a water utility that is regulated by the Public Service 
Commission and asked if the City is somewhat more able, through fees, push the 
infrastructure preservation button harder because the City can justified it. 
 
Mr. Yaccarino replied in the negative.  He said it is still balanced between what the 
costumer can afford vs. what the City wants to do. The City does try to maintain a  

City of Milwaukee Page 3



CAPITAL IMPROVEMENTS 
COMMITTEE 

January 21, 2010Meeting Minutes

reasonable level. 
 
Mr. Yaccarino said the City recently received a sewer grant.   
 
Mr. Mantes said the City also received low cost loans for sewer work from the Dept. of 
Natural Resources this year, but doesn't know if that will continue.  
 
Mr. Schroeder continued on page 6 of his presentation.  He gave examples of ways this 
committee could use in setting its facilities projects and funding priorities.   
 
Mr. Schoreder explained the key issues, listed on page 7 of his presentation, that are not 
under the purview of this committee, but are part of the capital improvement plan, such 
as Fire and Dept. of Public Works Equipment, technology projects, economic 
development, etc.  
 
Mr. Schifalacqua asked if there is a reason why those capital improvements projects are 
not included in the purview of this committee? 
 
Mr. Zalben replied that the main sponsor felt it was a lot of work for the committee to take 
on all at once. He said the committee's responsibility can revised at any time.  
 
Mr. Schifalaqua asked if it would take an ordinance change to include those projects in 
the purview of this committee? 
 
Mr. Zalben replied in the affirmative. 
 
Mr. Schroeder referred members to his other two hand outs and said the first set of 
spreadsheets shows the capital improvement projects that all the city departments have 
requested in 2009 and the budget plan for 2010 through 2015. He said the Table 1 
spreadsheet shows the financing for the capital improvement projects. 
 
Mr. Schroeder referred members to page 8 of his presentation and explained the next 
steps this committee will need to take, such as, begin development of the 2010-15 
Capital Improvements Plan and requesting departments to send their capital 
improvements requests to the committee for review. The committee will then need to 
submit its requests to the budget office by May 11, 2010 and then work with the Mayor 
and Council on funding priorities.  
 
Ald. Dudzik replied that the May 11th due date for the submission of the 2011 Capital 
Budget isn't feasible. He said this committee will have to rely on the budget office for one 
more year. 
 
Mr. Yaccarino replied that the May 11th due date is a statutory requirement.   
 
Mr. Schifalaqua said the way the operation is currently run is that all departments submit 
their capital improvements project requests to the budget office by May 11th each year 
and asked that now that this committee has been established what will the process be 
and how will the budget office be involved? 
 
Mr. Schroeder replied that in his review of the formation of this committee, the 
departments would submit their capital improvement project requests to this committee 
and this committee would put together a capital improvements budget request and submit 
it to the Budget Office by May 11th.  The budget office will still analysis, develop and 
include it in the proposed Mayor's budget.  He said the budget office will take the 
department request as submitted, but will not weed out any requests.   

City of Milwaukee Page 4



CAPITAL IMPROVEMENTS 
COMMITTEE 

January 21, 2010Meeting Minutes
 

 
Mr. Mantes said if the committee wants to find out what the perceived capital 
improvement needs are, it may want all departments to submit what their perceived 
needs are.  
 
Mr. Nicolini replied that if the committee takes that route it should enforce some 
expectation regarding the quality of data expected from the department. 

5. Discussion relating to the committee's duties and reporting responsibilities as 
listed in Common Council File #081215 

Mr. Daun commented that the impact on the six-year Capital Improvements Committee 
plan and even on the 2011 capital improvement budget requests are very limited for this 
year, but the expertise on this committee and the staff support could provide some fruitful 
information and discussion for the first City infrastructure and facility condition report. He 
said when that report comes out it will be very meaningful for this committee and can be 
a basis for the guidelines for next year's capital improvement request submittals.   
 
Mr. Daun asked if the committee could request a set of condition data from all 
departments so that this committee could begin it review of that data at its next meeting?
 
Mr. Mantes replied that every department should have a sufficient amount of data 
available at this time that this committee could begin reviewing. 

6. Next meeting date, time and agenda 

Ald. Dudzik said that the committee will continue meeting the third Thursday of every 
month. The next meeting is scheduled for February 18, 2010, but there is a conflict with 
the Steering and Rules Committee and asked the members if they are available on 
February 25, 2010? 
 
Mr. Leonhardt asked if the committee wants to consider establishing a regular scheduled 
meet within the Council's three week cycle.   
 
Ald. Dudzik replied in the affirmative.  He said that would make sense, because this 
committee will eventually be televised.   He said Ms. MacDonald will survey the members 
on a day that will work for all. 

Meeting adjourned: 2:39 P.M. 
 
Terry J. MacDonald 
Staff Assistant 

City of Milwaukee Page 5






























